
 

 

 
 
 

Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Anoka City Hall – Council Chambers 

 
May 18, 2017, 11:00 AM 

 
Agenda 

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of Agenda 

4. Administrative Reports 

4.1.  Secretary 

4.1.1. Approval of the April 20, 2017, commission work session minutes. 

4.1.2. Approval of the April 20, 2017, commission minutes. 

4.2. Treasurer 

4.2.1. March Financial Reports 

4.3. Executive Director 

5. General Business 

5.1. 2016 Audit Presentation 

5.2. City Council Chambers HD Upgrade – Camera Purchase Request 

6. Adjourn  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION OF  
APRIL 20, 2017 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 1 
 

Chair Heitkamp called the meeting to order at 9:38 a.m. at the Anoka City Hall. 
 
ROLL CALL– 2 
 

Commissioners present were: Greg Lee, Anoka; John LeTourneau, Ramsey; 
Kurt Ulrich, Ramsey; Jim Dickinson, Andover; Jim Goodrich, Andover; Jessica 
Tesdall, Champlin; and Bret Heitkamp, Champlin. 
 
Commissioners absent:  Carl Anderson, Anoka. 
 
Others present included Karen George, Executive Director; John Summer, 
Technology Manager; and Katherine Lenaburg, Operations Manager. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA – 3 
 

Ms. George requested to add two items to the agenda, if time allows, to provide 
additional background information prior to the regular meeting this morning.  She 
requested to add discussion for the Proposed AED Purchase and a Legislative 
Right-of-way Update. 
 
Motion was made by Ulrich and seconded by Dickinson to approve the agenda 
as amended. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
ANNUAL PROGRAMMING REPORT – 4 
 

Ms. George provided background information on the typical review for 
programming.  She thanked Ms. Lenaburg for her great work this past year and 
Mr. Summer for his work since joining the organization. 
 
Ms. Lenaburg reviewed the programming statistics for 2016 for all member cities 
including both shared and unique programming.   



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Work Session Meeting 
April 20, 2017 
Page 2    
 

 
Ms. George provided further detail on how the content is displayed in the 
programming report and which meetings are unique as compared to shared.   
 
Ms. Lenaburg reviewed the QCTV programming for Channel 15, such as sports, 
election coverage, and other programming produced by QCTV.  She noted that 
mobile productions continue to be a success such as sports, graduations, and 
parades.  She provided a summary of the New and Views programming and 
some of the other programming that staff works to develop including election 
forums and assisting non-profits in developing PSAs for their organizations.  She 
noted that QCTV will hold another non-profit day in 2017 to assist in developing 
PSAs.  She stated that staff also responds to special requests for programming 
from the member cities.  She stated that YouTube is used to promote 
programming and drive viewers to the QCTV website now, rather than displaying 
content on the YouTube site.   
 
Commissioner LeTourneau asked how the programming lineup compares to the 
Strategic Plan. 
 
Ms. George noted that the programming ties directly to the Strategic Plan desire 
to meet the City needs.  She referenced the number of unique programs (City 
meeting coverage) compared to the overall programming developed by QCTV.  
She stated that staff is doing a great job of adhering to the Strategic Plan.   
 
Commissioner LeTourneau stated that QCTV seems to constantly be changing 
to meet the needs of the viewer and commended staff for their efforts.   
 
Ms. Lenaburg reviewed the submitted programming statistics for 2016.   
 
Ms. George provided additional details on the religious programming that is 
played on Sunday mornings.  She provided additional information on the school 
district channel and noted that staff has transitioned into the school district 
providing their own programing and staffing for that channel and therefore QCTV 
simply displays the content for their channel.  She distributed the programming 
guidelines.  She stated that 2016 was an election cycle for the local cities and 
therefore there was a lot of commitment towards election programming. 
 
Ms. Lenaburg reviewed the 2016 election coverage noting that QCTV simply 
provides the coverage while other organizations (League of Women Voters and 
North Metro Mayors Association) moderate the forums.  She reviewed the web 
statistics from 2016 as well as the archived video views for the year.  She stated 
that social media has been incorporated to increase visibility and recognition of 
the programing.  She reviewed the elements which assist in providing quality 
programing including the ability to make changes and improvements, staff 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Work Session Meeting 
April 20, 2017 
Page 3    
 

training and development, as well as collaboration and networking.  She 
reviewed some of the awards that organization won during 2016.   
 
The Commission thanked staff for their continued excellent work. 
 
Commissioner Ulrich stated that he would like to see QCTV advertised more as 
QCTV is barely mentioned on the resident surveys as a source of information for 
residents.  He noted that people may be watching QCTV content without 
realizing as they may think the cities develop their own meeting coverage.  He 
stated that perhaps city staff members can work together to better publicize the 
available programs.  He stated that he would like to strengthen the relationships 
between the communications staff members for the member cities.  He noted 
that boundaries do cross, as most Ramsey high school students go to Anoka 
and are involved in Anoka sports.   
 
Ms. George referenced a private server that QCTV established two years ago for 
member city staff members to access content and deploy content on the 
member city social media accounts.  She stated that marketing QCTV is in the 
Strategic Plan and noted that the item will be a focus in 2017.  She stated that 
perhaps QCTV could coordinate a training with member city staff members 
where sharing of information could occur.   
 
Commissioner Tesdall asked if there is a TV guide that could be accessed. 
 
Ms. George noted that the programming guide is on the QCTV website and on 
the program guide for cable television.   
 
Commissioner Tesdall asked if other cities allow residents to comment on 
Facebook posts. 
 
Commissioner Dickinson stated that Andover accepts comments but noted that it 
can become extremely time consuming because of the review that is necessary.  
He noted that the comments are unfiltered and it can create complications.   
 
Commissioner Lee stated that the Anoka public relations staff member is 
phenomenal and could meet with other city staff members to help share how she 
is capitalizing on social media outreach.  He agreed that you have to roll with 
comments and take the bad with the good.   
 
Commissioner LeTourneau stated that he is very excited with how QCTV is 
reaching the community and how that has changed under the leadership of Ms. 
George.  He stated that perhaps the QCTV staff could attend the member city 
meeting with communications staff to help facilitate.  He noted that there could 
be an extended benefit of QCTV becoming a content leader for the community.  
He stated that he would also want to ensure that the resources invested in at 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Work Session Meeting 
April 20, 2017 
Page 4    
 

QCTV are being used the best of their ability within the communities in order to 
help foster this growth and maturity. 
 
Ms. George stated that QCTV will take the lead on the meeting with 
communications staff.  She noted that it could be combined with the annual city 
clerks meeting.  She anticipated that the meeting would occur next fall.   
 
Chair Heitkamp stated that he would love to share the information with the City 
Council and city staff and would like to have more of a written component that 
would making sharing the information easier.  He noted that perhaps if there was 
an annual report that provided more details, that would be helpful in sharing the 
information.   
 
Ms. George distributed additional handouts for the Commission to review 
regarding election coverage, new series for member cities, and programming 
guidelines input.   
 
Commissioner Ulrich stated that he would be interested in who the customer is 
that is viewing/interested in purchasing the content.   
 
Ms. George noted that currently they charge for DVD copies of content and this 
discussion is simply thinking about the future when the content is delivered 
digitally.   
 
Commissioner LeTourneau stated that he would be interested in the storage and 
the time needed to process requests.  He stated that it would be helpful to know 
the current demand and future projects, which would help determine the 
expenses they are attempting to recover and the length of time data is stored for. 
 
Commissioner Goodrich asked and received confirmation that there is a demand 
for this activity.   
 
Ms. George reviewed some of the content that is purchased on DVD currently.  
She stated that the organization has been digitizing the content for the past three 
years.  She estimated that five to seven years of data would be available on the 
website.   
 
Chair Heitkamp asked if that adds value to the organization when you consider 
the staff time needed. 
 
Ms. George noted that because it is an emerging technology, there is not a 
scope of what people are willing to pay for local program viewing.  She stated 
that screen time is increasing not decreasing but there are multiple platforms 
being used with the new technology.  She stated that her job is to look to the 
future to stay current as technology continues to change.   



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Work Session Meeting 
April 20, 2017 
Page 5    
 

 
Commissioner Tesdall stated that when content is digital, you are able to view 
the media on multiple platforms and edit as desired.  She believed that if a low 
cost, such as $1.99, were used that could encourage more people to access and 
purchase the content.   
 
Ms. George noted that some advertisements were embedded into programming 
and noted that the program fell through because she could not find someone to 
sell the product.  She noted that it was an interesting experiment and there 
simply is not sufficient staffing, and therefore, the advertising program has been 
sunset. 

 
ADJOURN – 5 
 

Time of adjournment 10:59 a.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted,    Reviewed for approval, 
 
 
_____________________________            ________________________________ 
Amanda Staple     Karen George 
Recording Secretary    Executive Director  
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF  
APRIL 20, 2017 

 
CALL TO ORDER – 1 
 

Chair Heitkamp called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. at the Anoka City Hall. 
 
ROLL CALL– 2 
 

Commissioners present were: Greg Lee, Anoka; John LeTourneau, Ramsey; 
Kurt Ulrich, Ramsey; Jim Dickinson, Andover; Jim Goodrich, Andover; Jessica 
Tesdall, Champlin; and Bret Heitkamp, Champlin. 
 
Commissioners absent and excused:  Carl Anderson, Anoka. 
 
Others present included Karen George, Executive Director; and other QCTV staff 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – 3 
 

Motion was made by LeTourneau and seconded by Tesdall to approve the 
agenda as presented. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS – 4  
 

4.1  Secretary 
  

4.1.1.     Approval of meeting minutes from January 19, 2017 
 
Motion was made by Dickinson and seconded by Ulrich to approve the January 
19, 2017 minutes as presented. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 

 4.2  Treasurer 
 
  4.2.1.     December, January, and February Financial Reports 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Regular Session 
April 20, 2017 
Page 2    
 

    
Commissioner Dickinson stated that the organization had a good end to the 
financial year.  He stated that the budget comparison was provided and also 
ended well.  He noted that there will be some changes to the budget reports in 
the future as changes are made to certain items such as payroll.  He stated that 
investments will be added as well on future budget reports. 

 
Motion was made by Ulrich and seconded by Lee to accept the December, 
January, and February Financial Reports. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried 
 

 4.3   Executive Director 
 

Ms. George welcomed the new members of the Commission that have joined 
and noted that a thank you was provided to outgoing members Andover Mayor 
Julie Trude and Champlin Councilmember Eric Johnson in front of their 
respective City Councils.  She noted that the June Commission meeting has 
been canceled as it interferes with a conference.  She reviewed some of the 
recent awards that QCTV received.   
 
Chair Heitkamp stated that at the worksession before today’s meeting the 
Commission received the annual programming report and commended staff for 
the thorough presentation. 
 
Ms. George provided an update on legislative and FCC action that directly and 
indirectly impact the industry, including right-of-way access.  She noted that the 
FCC is currently holding a hearing on this issue and noted that the Commission 
packet contains additional information on the topic.   
 
Chair Heitkamp stated that he has been to the capitol twice on the issue of right-
of-way access.  He noted that they are not opposing the opportunity to access 
the right-of-way, but would like local control to monitor the access of the right-of-
way itself. 
 
Motion was made by Tesdall seconded by Ulrich to accept the Executive 
Director’s report. 

 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
GENERAL BUSINESS – 5  
 
 5.1  AED Purchase and Training  
 



Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
Regular Session 
April 20, 2017 
Page 3    
 

Ms. George stated that QCTV would like to purchase AED equipment.  She 
noted that both Ramsey and Andover are heart safe communities and QCTV 
would like to be more proactive.  She asked for the authorization to purchase the 
equipment, noting that one unit would be installed in the building while the other 
would be in the mobile van.  She stated that staff submitted a grant submittal 
request to Allina which could result in a grant of $800.  She noted that if the grant 
was successful they would take advantage of those funds.   
 
Commissioner LeTourneau asked if complete training of the equipment would be 
included with the purchase of the equipment. 
 
Ms. George confirmed that at a minimum all 10 full-time employees would be 
trained in addition to a few part-time employees.   
 
Motion was made by LeTourneau and seconded by Goodrich to approve CIP 
expenditure of $4,500 (+/- 5%) for purchasing two LifePak CR Plus fully-auto 
AED for QCTV building and mobile production truck. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
5.2  City Council Chambers HD Upgrade Report  
 

Ms. George stated that staff wanted to provide an update on the high definition 
upgrades for each City Hall.  She reviewed the equipment that has been updated 
and the equipment that would still need to be updated in order to provide fully 
high definition coverage.  She stated that the equipment will be included in the 
2017 CIP.  She stated that they will also poll staff from the member cities to 
determine if there are any other needs specific to each City Hall.   

 
ADJOURN – 6  

 
Motion was made by LeTourneau and seconded by Ulrich to adjourn the 
meeting. 
 
7 ayes – 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
Time of adjournment 11:21 a.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,    Reviewed for approval, 
 
_____________________________            ________________________________ 
Amanda Staple     Karen George 
Recording Secretary    Executive Director 
TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 



Total
ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts - QCTV 899,716.41

- PayPay acct 404.88

- US Bank Reserve 5,000.00

- Petty Cash 250.00

- Investments 1,241,233.77

      Accounts Receivable 0.00

      Other current assets 0.00

   Total Current Assets $                  2,146,605.06

   Fixed Assets 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS $                  2,146,605.06

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable 6,771.90

         Other Current Liabilities 915.01

      Total Current Liabilities $                        7,686.91

   Equity 2,138,918.15
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $                  2,146,605.06

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Balance Sheet Summary

As of March 31, 2017



Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget
Income

   Duplication Revenue  $              229.15  $         125.00  $              104.15 183.32%  $              535.49  $           1,500.00  $                (964.51) 35.70%

   Equipment Grant          4,748.00             (4,748.00) 0.00%             56,428.75             56,980.00                    (551.25) 99.03%

   Franchise Fees        72,854.00           (72,854.00) 0.00%                         -             874,248.00             (874,248.00) 0.00%

   Interest Income                  667.61                 8.00                  659.61 8345.13%               1,762.91                  100.00                   1,662.91 1762.91%

   PEG Fee        36,427.00           (36,427.00) 0.00%                         -             437,125.00             (437,125.00) 0.00%

Total Income                  896.76      114,162.00         (113,265.24) 0.79%             58,727.15        1,369,953.00          (1,311,225.85) 4.29%

Expenses

   A-PERA Expense               4,357.70          3,443.00                  914.70 126.57%             10,038.26             41,320.00               (31,281.74) 24.29%

   A-SS/Medicare Expense               4,674.99          3,952.00                  722.99 118.29%               9,447.30             47,432.00               (37,984.70) 19.92%

   A-Wages - Full-time             54,724.68        41,075.00             13,649.68 133.23%           108,702.89           492,900.00             (384,197.11) 22.05%

   A-Wages - Part-time               7,633.81          9,993.00             (2,359.19) 76.39%             16,778.55           119,922.00             (103,143.45) 13.99%

   Accounting / HR Services               1,750.76          1,275.00                  475.76 137.31%               3,493.69             15,300.00               (11,806.31) 22.83%

   Ads/Promos/Sponsorships                  442.05             916.00                (473.95) 48.26%               1,567.25             11,000.00                 (9,432.75) 14.25%

   Andover Capital Equipment                  157.03             416.00                (258.97) 37.75%                  157.03               5,000.00                 (4,842.97) 3.14%

   Announcers Fees               1,526.77          1,250.00                  276.77 122.14%               3,086.77             15,000.00               (11,913.23) 20.58%

   Anoka Capital Equipment                  111.99             416.00                (304.01) 26.92%                  588.22               5,000.00                 (4,411.78) 11.76%

   Audit          1,166.00             (1,166.00) 0.00%                         -               14,000.00               (14,000.00) 0.00%

   AV Equip / Repair / Supply / Software               1,885.00               1,885.00               1,885.00                         -                     1,885.00 

   Bank Fees / CC Fees               41.00                  (41.00) 0.00%                         -                    500.00                    (500.00) 0.00%

   Brand Apparel             208.00                (208.00) 0.00%                         -                 2,500.00                 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   Building - Cleaning                  500.00             583.00                  (83.00) 85.76%               1,535.63               7,000.00                 (5,464.37) 21.94%

   Building - Insurance             208.00                (208.00) 0.00%               1,488.00               2,500.00                 (1,012.00) 59.52%

   Building - Maintenance               2,565.06             833.00               1,732.06 307.93%               4,262.96             10,000.00                 (5,737.04) 42.63%

   Building - Supplies             208.00                (208.00) 0.00%                  103.68               2,500.00                 (2,396.32) 4.15%

   Car Allowance                  250.00             250.00                         -   100.00%                  750.00               3,000.00                 (2,250.00) 25.00%

   Cell Phone - Allowance             578.00                (578.00) 0.00%               1,250.00               6,940.00                 (5,690.00) 18.01%

   Champlin Capital Equipment                    84.90             416.00                (331.10) 20.41%                  339.60               5,000.00                 (4,660.40) 6.79%

   City Sewer & Water                  198.82             216.00                  (17.18) 92.05%                  206.52               2,600.00                 (2,393.48) 7.94%

   Commission Expense                    25.00             600.00                (575.00) 4.17%                  145.63               7,200.00                 (7,054.37) 2.02%

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2017 - FY17 P&L 

January - December 2017

Mar 2017 YTD



Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2017 - FY17 P&L 

January - December 2017

Mar 2017 YTD

   Consulting Services          6,250.00             (6,250.00) 0.00%               1,840.00             75,000.00               (73,160.00) 2.45%

   Contingency Fund          2,551.00             (2,551.00) 0.00%                         -               30,622.00               (30,622.00) 0.00%

   Duplication Expenses               83.00                  (83.00) 0.00%                         -                 1,000.00                 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Electric Service               2,133.77          1,596.00                  537.77 133.69%               3,314.58             19,152.00               (15,837.42) 17.31%

   Emp / Comm Appreciation             208.00                (208.00) 0.00%                         -                 2,500.00                 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   Equip/Repair/Supply/Software               1,338.26          3,817.00             (2,478.74) 35.06%               5,284.02             45,812.00               (40,527.98) 11.53%

   Federal Unempl Expense               70.00                  (70.00) 0.00%                  341.86                  850.00                    (508.14) 40.22%

   Health Insurance               5,578.40          6,221.00                (642.60) 89.67%             16,735.20             74,652.00               (57,916.80) 22.42%

   Insurance - Deductibles               41.00                  (41.00) 0.00%                         -                    500.00                    (500.00) 0.00%

   Insurance - Liability / Bonds             541.00                (541.00) 0.00%               3,727.00               6,500.00                 (2,773.00) 57.34%

   Lawn Service             458.00                (458.00) 0.00%                         -                 5,500.00                 (5,500.00) 0.00%

   Legal Fees          1,250.00             (1,250.00) 0.00%                  275.00             15,000.00               (14,725.00) 1.83%

   Licenses and Permits               83.00                  (83.00) 0.00%                         -                 1,000.00                 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Meals               83.00                  (83.00) 0.00%                         -                 1,000.00                 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Memberships - NATOA / Others             666.00                (666.00) 0.00%               4,855.00               8,000.00                 (3,145.00) 60.69%

   Mileage                  892.79             600.00                  292.79 148.80%               1,623.72               7,200.00                 (5,576.28) 22.55%

   Miscellaneous Expenses               83.00                  (83.00) 0.00%                         -                 1,000.00                 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Natural Gas               1,439.68             333.00               1,106.68 432.34%               2,302.50               4,000.00                 (1,697.50) 57.56%

   Office Supplies / Equipment                  113.19             500.00                (386.81) 22.64%                  469.76               6,000.00                 (5,530.24) 7.83%

   Parking Lot Maintenance             266.00                (266.00) 0.00%                         -                 3,200.00                 (3,200.00) 0.00%

   Payroll Expenses                         -                    176.25                         -                        176.25 

   Payroll Expenses (ADP/HSA)                  229.25             491.00                (261.75) 46.69%                  612.15               5,900.00                 (5,287.85) 10.38%

   Postage                    84.02               83.00                      1.02 101.23%                  150.71               1,000.00                    (849.29) 15.07%

   Printing / Copy Services               83.00                  (83.00) 0.00%                         -                 1,000.00                 (1,000.00) 0.00%

   Professional Development                  205.00          1,500.00             (1,295.00) 13.67%                  245.00             18,000.00               (17,755.00) 1.36%

   Publications               41.00                  (41.00) 0.00%                         -                    500.00                    (500.00) 0.00%

   Ramsey Capital Equipment                    22.91             416.00                (393.09) 5.51%                  409.03               5,000.00                 (4,590.97) 8.18%

   Repairs                         -                      23.18                         -                          23.18 

   Sales Tax               41.00                  (41.00) 0.00%                  125.00                  500.00                    (375.00) 25.00%

   Secretary Services             249.00                (249.00) 0.00%                  139.00               2,992.00                 (2,853.00) 4.65%

   Snow Plowing Service                  238.75             375.00                (136.25) 63.67%               1,483.75               4,500.00                 (3,016.25) 32.97%



Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget Actual Budget over Budget
% of 

Budget

Quad Cities Communications Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2017 - FY17 P&L 

January - December 2017

Mar 2017 YTD

   State Unemploy Exp             208.00                (208.00) 0.00%                         -                 2,500.00                 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   STD / LTD / Life Insurance                  544.38             666.00                (121.62) 81.74%               1,658.04               8,000.00                 (6,341.96) 20.73%

   Studio Sets                  587.50             833.00                (245.50) 70.53%               1,175.00             10,000.00                 (8,825.00) 11.75%

   Subscription Services                    49.00          1,666.00             (1,617.00) 2.94%               9,941.60             20,000.00               (10,058.40) 49.71%

   Temp Staff Services             208.00                (208.00) 0.00%                         -                 2,500.00                 (2,500.00) 0.00%

   Vehicle - Equipment / Repair               3,196.89          1,041.00               2,155.89 307.10%               3,749.75             12,500.00                 (8,750.25) 30.00%

   Vehicle - Insurance             333.00                (333.00) 0.00%               2,536.00               4,000.00                 (1,464.00) 63.40%

   Vehicle - Maintenance / Gas                  628.07             500.00                  128.07 125.61%                  891.43               6,000.00                 (5,108.57) 14.86%

   Waste Removal                    91.12             100.00                    (8.88) 91.12%                  273.36               1,200.00                    (926.64) 22.78%

   Web / VOD / Int / CaTV / Phone               1,223.51          1,833.00                (609.49) 66.75%               3,922.98             22,000.00               (18,077.02) 17.83%

   Work Comp Insurance             191.00                (191.00) 0.00%                         -                 2,300.00                 (2,300.00) 0.00%

Total Expenses             99,485.05      104,601.00             (5,115.95) 95.11%           234,107.85        1,255,494.00          (1,021,386.15) 18.65%

Net Income  $       (98,588.29)  $      9,561.00  $     (108,149.29) -1031.15%  $     (175,380.70)  $       114,459.00  $         (289,839.70) -153.23%

   ZCIP - Andover    $         20,000.00 

   ZCIP - Anoka               20,000.00 

   ZCIP - Champlin               20,000.00 

   ZCIP - Network Servers  $           5,173.72                 6,030.47 

   ZCIP - Ramsey               20,000.00 

5,173.72$           86,030.47$         

Wednesday, Apr 26, 2017 11:15:55 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis









QCCCC Agenda Item  

4.3 Executive Director’s Report 

 

May 9, 2017 

To:  Commissioners  

From: Karen George, Executive Director  

Subject:  Executive Director’s Report (April)
 

June Commission meeting cancelled 
The regular monthly commission meeting schedule for June 15 has been cancelled 
dues to the League of Minnesota Cities annual conference. 
 
City Council HD Upgrade Project 
The HD upgrade to city council chambers is on track. The camera purchase capital 
request is on the May agenda. City staff are responding to the online survey of 
desired equipment upgrades, and the RFP for consulting services in development. 
 
CenturyLink Update  
CenturyLink is marketing the PRISM TV service and the commission received the 
first quarter fee payment. Staff has scheduled a quarterly meeting with company 
representatives to check-in on various topics including marketing, certification of 
plant, confidence feeds, and channel designations. The meeting is set for May 16.  
 
LMCIT Workshop 
I attended the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust Risk Assessment seminar. 
Worthwhile information on a variety of insurance topics including human resources, 
FLSA, contracts, mechanical breakdown insurance, Right-of-Way issues, and 
respectful workplace topics.  
 
Presentation of Telly Awards Received 
The Telly Awards is the premier award honoring the best in TV and Cable, Digital 
and Streaming, and Non-Broadcast Productions. QCTV earned three honors: 

• General Entertainment – Grid Package – Como Zoo 
• Live Event – Rosemount vs Champlin Park Football 
• Sports – Rosemount vs Champlin Park Football 

 
District Court Show Airs 101th Episode! 
Judge Stephen M. Halsey pens letter of gratitude. Please see attached letter. 



City Matters – 3 shows completed 
The new City Matter shows are in production. The City of Anoka completed two 
shows and the City of Ramsey completed one show. The cities of Champlin and 
Andover have show ideas under consideration. Please visit the QCTV web site to see 
Ramsey Matters: http://qctv.org/city_meeting/ramsey-matters-2017-parks-and-
recreation/ 
 
2016 Audit 
Redpath & Company completed the 2016 Audit. It has been reviewed by the budget 
committee. The audit has been filed with the State Auditor Office. Redpath 
representatives will present the audit to the commission on May providing 
materials and responding to requests for information. Audit on-site work was 
completed April 6. A budget committee meeting will be scheduled to review the 
audit prior to commission action. 
 
Annual Programming Presentation 
Staff presented the annual programming review at the April work session. 
 
Comcast Fee Increases 
See attached rate increase notice. 
 
Champlin 169 Construction 
Please note that there is a major road construction project planned for the Highway 
169 corridor through Champlin. This will affect travel time to attend shoots at the 
QCTV Studios.  
 
Legislative Update 
As of the first week in May, meetings have been taking place regarding local ROW 
management and small cell DAS legislation. League of Minnesota Cities and industry 
representatives are both attending those meetings. Reports are little progress is 
being made on key points. The session is quickly drawing to a close and legislative 
analyst monitor daily for insertion into omnibus bill.  
  
Customer Comments 
  
Anoka-Hennepin School District Channel 
So helpful. Thank you, Karen for this information, your insight, and your advice. We 
appreciate all you and the QCTV staff do for Anoka-Hennepin schools and students! 
Thank you! 
Cindy Harris, Media Services, Anoka-Hennepin Schools 
 
Walk a Mile in her Shoes 
This looks wonderful! We are very happy with how this turned out. You are all very 
talented over there at QCTV. This is so great! 
Best regards 
Kellie L. Schmidt, Community Volunteer & Event Coordinator 

http://qctv.org/city_meeting/ramsey-matters-2017-parks-and-recreation/
http://qctv.org/city_meeting/ramsey-matters-2017-parks-and-recreation/


 
Books and Beyond 
Hi Leslie,  
I thought your typing of the show was professionally done. I was impressed with the 
quality of the online show and the way you introduced the authors by showing their 
book in their introduction. And yes, if there is an opportunity for another interview I 
would be willing to come in again. Thank you for having me on Books and Beyond, 
Phyllis Moore 
 
Champlin News and View 
Thanks Katherine. It looks great! Thank you for helping us get our news out to the 
community. 
John Cox, City of Champlin 
 
The Local Show - Bikes4Kids 
Leslie, I just watched our segment that John Gillis emailed to me and all I can say 
is…WOW. I made a living for several decades “talking” to student, staff, parents, 
other educators…. if you ask some of the staff at Champlin Park HS who worked with 
me when I was there they will tell you that one of my “mottos” was: “If 25 words are 
good, 50 would be better?” But I am almost speechless after viewing the 
segment…excellent in every way. Saying “thank you” doesn’t seem enough; you did a 
fabulous job in capturing what B4K is all about. 
Dave 
 
Action Requested: None. 















 

 
Capitol Update Report 

 
To: Minnesota Association of Community Telecommunication Administrators 

(MACTA) 
 
From: Joseph Bagnoli  
 
Date: May 11, 2017 
 
              
 

Introduced Bills 
Bills Introduced last week are highlighted 

 
 
Bill Introductions 

House  
File 

House  
Author 

Senate  
File 

Senate  
Author 

 
Notes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Small Cell Bill 
 
 
** This bill, and the 
language of the bill, are 
not included in any 
omnibus bill that is 
currently alive. 

739 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hoppe 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

561 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Osmek 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2/28 Passed Hs. 
Commerce.  Sent to Hs. 
Gov. Ops. Policy. 
 
3/7/17 Passed Hs. Gov. 
Ops Policy.  Sent to Hs. 
Jobs. 
 
3/15/17 Heard in Hs. 
Jobs.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Hs. 
Jobs Fin. Bill. 
 
3/26/17 Included in Hs. 
Jobs Fin. Bill. Passed Hs. 
Jobs Fin.  Sent to Hs. 
Ways & Means. 
 
4/3/17 – Small Cell 
language amended out of 
Hs. Jobs Fin. Bill. 
 
4/6/17 – Hs. Jobs Fin. Bill 
passed Hs. Floor 
 
 
3/6/17 Passed Senate 
Utilities Committee.  Sent 
to Senate Local Govt. 
Committee. 
 
Not included in Senate 
Utilities Omnibus Bill. 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/bill.php?f=HF739&y=2017&ssn=0&b=house
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF561


MACTA 
May 11, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
Prohibiting cities from 
using gas/electric 
franchise fees to raise 
revenue –  
 
 
**Does not impact cable 
franchise.  
 
 
*** included in House 
Omnibus Tax bill – HF 4, 
Art. 12, Sec. 4.  – lines 
266.27-268.3 
 
House Tax Bill 
 
This provision was not 
included in the Conference 
Committee Report that was 
sent to the Governor on 
5/9/17 - Jobs CC Report 
Link 
 
 

1146 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vogel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2092 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draheim 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3/9/17 Passed Hs. Gov. 
Ops. Policy.  Sent to Hs.Tax 
Committee. 
 
3/13/17 Heard in Hs. Prop. 
Tax Division.  Laid over. 
 
3/27/17 Included in Hs.Tax 
bill. Passed.  Sent to Hs. 
Ways & Means. 
 
3/28 Passed Hs.  Ways & 
Means.  Sent to Floor 
 
3/30/17 Passed Hs. Floor. 
 
 
3/20/17 Passed Sn. Local 
Committee.  Sent to Sn. 
Taxes.  Not heard.  

      

 
Expands sales tax 
exemption for telecom 
Equipment to include 
wire, cable, fiber, poles, or 
conduit 
 
*** included in House 
Omnibus Tax bill – HF 4, 
Art. 4, Sec. 11. – lines 
152.18 
  
House Tax Bill 
 
*** included in Tax 
Conference Committee 
Report that was sent to 
the Governor on 5/9/17.  
Art. 3, sec. 8 -- line 137.3 - 
Tax CC Report Link 
 

1250 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bliss 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

955 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Senjem 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2/23 – Heard in Sn. Tax.  
Laid over for possible 
inclusion in the Tax bill.  Not 
included. 
 
2/27/17 – Heard in Hs. Tax.  
Laid over for possible 
inclusion. 
 
3/27/17 Included in Hs.Tax 
bill. Passed.  Sent to Hs. 
Ways & Means. 
 
3/28 Passed Hs.  Ways & 
Means.  Sent to Floor 
 
3/30/17 Passed Hs. Floor. 
 
 
3/20/17 Passed Sn. Local 
Committee.  Sent to Sn. 
Taxes.  Not heard.  

      

Appropriating Money to 
pay the State-Level 
Funding Match for the 
Federal E-rate Program 2449 Swedzinski 2237 Weber 

 

      

http://wdoc.house.leg.state.mn.us/leg/LS90/HF0004.3.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1146&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF2092
http://wdoc.house.leg.state.mn.us/leg/LS90/HF0004.3.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=HF4&type=CCR&version=A&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1250&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF955
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2449&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF2237


MACTA 
May 11, 2017 
Page 3 
 
K-12 Broadband Equity 
Aid –$18 million 

881 
 

Baker 
 

 936 
 

Weber 
 

 

      

Construction materials 
purchased by Cities 
exempted from Sales Tax 

299 
 

Swedzinski 
 

283 
 

Rest 
 

 

      

Broadband Grant 
Program- $100 Million 
 
*** Broadband funding is 
in the Omnibus House 
and Senate Finance Bills 
–HF 2209 / SF 1937 
 
*** $15 million is included 
in the Jobs Conference 
Committee Report that 
was sent to the Governor 
on 5/9/17.  Article 1, Sec. 
2, Subd. 8  - Line 26.1- 
Jobs CC Report Link 
 

 
 

841 
 
 

 
 
 

Sandstede 
 
 

 
 

234 
 
 

 
 
 

Simonson 
 
 

2/27/17 Heard in Sn. 
Jobs.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Sn. 
Jobs Omnibus bill. 

      

 
Broadband Grant 
Program – $35 million.  
Other changes to 
Program. 

 
None 

 
  

 
 

 980 
 
 

Westrom 
 
 

2/27/17 Heard in Sn. 
Jobs.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Sn. 
Jobs Omnibus bill. 

      

 
Broadband Grant 
Program - $35 million 
 

1618 
 
 

Baker 
 
 

None 
 
  

3/15/17 Heard in Hs 
Jobs.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Hs. 
Jobs Omnibus bill. 

      

Modifying the Priorities 
for Awarding Broadband 
Grants 

2504 
 

Sandstede 
 

None 
  

 

      

 
Prohibiting Regulation of 
Voice-Over-Internet 
Protocol  
 
VOIP language is now 
included in: 
 
House Jobs Omnibus bill, 
HF 2209, Art. 9, sec. 1 – 
line 152. 
 
House Jobs Bill Link 
 
Senate Jobs Omnibus bill, 
SF 1937, Art. 2, sec. 17 – 
line 152 
 
Senate Jobs Bill Link 

 
 
 

1665 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Kresha 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 1742 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Ruud 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2/28 Passed Hs 
Commerce.  Sent to Hs 
Jobs. 
 
3/15/17 Heard in Hs 
Jobs.  Laid over for 
possible inclusion in Hs 
Jobs Fin. bill. 
 
3/26/17 Included in Hs. 
Jobs Fin. Bill. Passed Hs. 
Jobs Fin.  Sent to Hs. 
Ways & Means. 
 
4/3/17 – Passed Ways & 
Means. Sent to Hs. Floor. 
 
4/6/17 – Passed Hs. 
Floor. 

http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0881&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF936
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/bill.php?f=HF299&b=house&y=2017&ssn=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/bill.php?f=SF283&b=senate&y=2017&ssn=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF0841&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF234
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF980
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1618&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF2504&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://wdoc.house.leg.state.mn.us/leg/LS90/HF2209.1.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&version=3&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0&format=pdf
http://www.revisor.mn.gov/bin/getbill.php?number=HF1665&version=latest&session=90&session_number=0&session_year=2017
http://www.senate.mn/bin/unoff_eng.php?version=latest&session=ls90&session_number=0&session_year=2017&number=SF1742


MACTA 
May 11, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
*** Language is also 
included in the Jobs 
Conference Committee 
Report that was sent to 
the Governor on 5/9/17.  
Article 9  - Line 159.21- 
Jobs CC Report Link 
 

 
 
2/23/17 Amended into 
Sn. Jobs Finance Bill.  
Passed.  Sent to Floor.    
 
3/29/17 Passed Senate 
Floor. 

 
General Legislative Update 

 
As of Thursday, the Governor and legislature have approximately eleven days 

left to get the work of the session done.  The 2017 regular legislative session concludes 
on Monday, May 22 at midnight.  The events of this week so far do not portend well for 
an easy close to the session. 
 

Including the Omnibus Tax bill, there are ten Omnibus Finance bills that provide 
funding for all facets of state government.  As last week ended, there was some hope 
that progress was being made with the hope that this week would start with some sense 
of a path forward.  Instead, on Monday, the House and Senate announced that they 
planned to pass the Omnibus bills without reaching agreement with the Governor.  He 
promptly indicated that he would veto all of them. The storyline that the legislature 
clearly sought to advance was that the Governor hasn’t had the urgency to reach 
agreement.  According to legislative leaders, the Governor indicated that he could not 
meet last Sunday, and could not meet any night this week.  Additionally, the legislature 
will be able to accurately argue that they did pass a budget and it included a $1.15 
billion tax cut, and but for the Governor’s intransigence all would be good.  The central 
issue that needs to be resolved is the size of the tax cut.  The legislature and the 
Governor are approximately $850 million apart on the dollar amount, as well as where 
the tax cuts would be directed.  Until this bill is resolved there is little ability to negotiate 
the dollar targets for the other nine bills.   
 

As of Wednesday night, the legislature had sent five bills to the Governor.  He 
has until Friday at midnight to act on these bills.  An unexpected, and sad, glitch has 
occurred that is holding up the remaining bills from being voted on and sent to the 
Governor.  The father of Senator Carla Nelson, R-Rochester, is gravely ill and she is 
with him.  Given the GOP’s one-seat majority in the Senate, action on the omnibus bills 
has stopped. 
 

Thus, as we head into Mother’s Day weekend, or Fishing Opener weekend, 
which is a mandatory political event before the Governor and legislative leaders, there is 
no evidence that we will be any closer to resolution by the beginning of next week.  As 
has been the case in the past couple of years, we may, once again, need to limp into a 
special session to complete the work. 
 
 
 
 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0


MACTA 
May 11, 2017 
Page 5 
 
Small Cell  
 

Although the small cell siting legislation never received a vote on the House or 
Senate floor, at the insistence of House leadership, negotiations have been taking place 
in an attempt to find a path forward on this legislation.  On behalf of the Cities, the 
League of Cities has taken the lead in negotiations, joined by representatives of the 
Minnesota Municipal Utilities Association, the Cities Engineers Association, and the 
Association of Minnesota Counties.  These negotiations have been moderated by Rep. 
Marion O’Neill (R-Maplebrook).  They have been extensive and have required long 
hours on behalf of those involved.   
 

On Wednesday night, the Speaker of the House came to the meetings and 
strongly backed the wireless providers, indicating that if a compromise wasn’t reached, 
he would bring something to the floor that the League and their allies might not like.   
The deadline for achieving this compromise is this Friday.  On Wednesday, Verizon also 
spent the day providing a mini-bus that took legislators and others to see a small cell 
that is installed by the Saint Paul Cathedral as well as to be exposed to what 5G 
actually means.     
 

Clearly, this is very disheartening.  On a brighter note, the Senate has not been 
consulted at all, and from conversations yesterday, was largely unaware that these 
meetings had been taking place.  Similarly, the Governor’s office has not been 
involved.    
 

Finally, the Minnesota Cable Association has largely been shut out of these 
negotiations.  They are unhappy. 
 
 
Broadband Funding 
 

The Omnibus Jobs bill is one of the bills that has been sent to the Governor.  The 
bill that was sent to the Governor included $250,000 per year to fund the Office of 
Broadband and a $15 million in FY 2018 for Broadband grants.  The specific language 
can be found at Article 1, Sec. 2, Subd. 8  - Line 26.1 of the attached bill - Jobs CC 
Report Link 
 
The Governor had proposed $60 million or $30 million per year. 
 
The Senate had proposed changes to the local match requirements for projects in 
underserved areas.  These proposed changes were not included in the bill that was sent 
to the Governor. 
 
 
Voip 
 

The Article 9 of – the Jobs CC Report Link at line 159.21 sets out the VOIP 
language.  The MACTA exemption for video services is contained in the language. 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=SF1937&type=CCR&version=0&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0


MACTA 
May 11, 2017 
Page 6 
 
 
Sales Tax Exemption for Telecommunications equipment 
 

The House Omnibus Tax bill expands the sales tax exemption on equipment 
purchases for the telecommunications and pay television industries to include the 
purchase of wire, cable fiber, poles and conduit.  For obvious reasons, this provision 
has the strong backing of the telecommunication providers and the cable providers. 
 
House Omnibus Tax Bill Link – lines 152.18 of the bill.  Art. 4, sec. 11. 
 
The Senate Omnibus Tax bill did not contain this provision. 
 
The Omnibus Tax bill that was sent to the Governor on May 9, 2017, includes this 
exemption.  Tax CC Report Link – line137.3 of the bill.  Art. 3, sec. 8. 
 

http://wdoc.house.leg.state.mn.us/leg/LS90/HF0004.3.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/bills/text.php?number=HF4&type=CCR&version=A&session=ls90&session_year=2017&session_number=0


QCCCC Agenda Item 

4.3.1 Operations Report 

 

May 1, 2017 

To:  Karen George, Executive Director  

From: Katherine Lenaburg, Operations Manager  

Subject:  Operations Update 

 
 
QCTV productions include a show called “QCTV Goes to the Capitol” featuring Minnesota 
Historical Society Site Manager Brian Pease who gives us a tour of the State Capitol.  
 
Spring sports is in full swing We produced six features stories for “At the Half”. We 
covered golf, trapshooting, and tennis. These features stories playback at half time of the 
boys and girls lacrosse games. We responded to a request from Legacy Christian School 
in Ramsey and produced a live baseball game with the PACT school in Ramsey and they 
were very pleased to be included in our line-up of spring sports. 
 
We are in the process of producing new PSA’s and completed this month is one on the 
dangers of texting while driving and another on keeping the storm drains clear of debris. 
We also picked up trash in the neighborhood on Earth Day and produced 3 PSA’s featuring 
employees. We produced a new version of “What’s New at the Q” and included the recent 
buzzer beater that was on ESPN’s Top 10 Plays of the Day as well as clips from our recent 
“Live and Local: Feel the Rhythm” program.  
 
 We produced live coverage of seventeen government meetings.  
 
Our regular shows include “News and Views”, “The Chamber Report”, “It’s Your History” 
and “The District Court Show”. “The District Court Show” was filmed on location in the 
refurbished Minnesota Supreme Court at the State Capitol and featured Minnesota 
Supreme Court Justice David Lillehaug.  
 
We also produced a new episode of “Beyond the Book” that features four local authors. 
We also completed an episode of “Game Sharks”. 
   
Submitted programs include two episodes of “Around the World in Music” by the River 
Heights Chorale. We also played back a documentary called “I Never Saw Another 



Butterfly” about the play of the same name at Northern Starz Children’s Theatre and their 
journey centered around their production that dealt with the Terezin holding camp during 
the Holocaust. Northern Starz Children’s Theatre is based in Ramsey and many children 
from the Anoka, Champlin, Ramsey, and Andover areas perform in their shows. 
 
We also carried live coverage of one of The Minnesota Vixen games. This is produced by 
Town Square Television and features full tackle women’s football.  
 
Taylor Johnson attended the NAB convention in Las Vegas. Cory Laing continues to 
participate in the Leadership Academy program through the Chamber of Commerce and 
Professional and Workforce Training through College and Anoka- Ramsey Community 
College.   
 
We continue to use our Razuna system to upload programming, video, and still shots, that 
we think will be of interest to our cities. We attended The Wyland Mayor’s Water 
Challenge at the Mall of America and produced a package for News and Views. We 
interviewed Andover Mayor Julie Trude and taped her speech and put them on the 
Razuna system and Andover had them up on their Facebook page the next day. 
 
We won three Telly Awards for our local programming. The Bronze Telly was awarded in 
the general entertainment category for a segment on Como Zoo we did for The Grid. We 
also won two Bronze Telly’s for the Rosemount vs. Champlin Park 6A MSHSL State Quarter 
Final Football game. We won in two categories- live event and sports. 
 
 
 



QCCCC Agenda Item  

4.3.2 Technology Report 

 

May 18, 2017 

To:  Karen George, Executive Director 

From:  John Sommer, Technology Manager 

Subject:   April 2017 Technology Report
 

 

Equipment Issues: 
 
QCTV Equipment 

• Ordered a replacement spreader and then repaired one Manfrotto tripod for camera kit 9.   
• Furnace 6, which heats and cools the studio, has been fully repaired.   

 
City Equipment 

• Anoka Chambers: Jim had identified a faulty audio amplifier last month.  I ordered a 
replacement part but it did not fix the problem.  Temporary solution still in place.   

 
Comcast Equipment 

I contacted Comcast technicians and spoke to Keith on the phone.  He changed the aspect 
ratio setting for the SD Community Channel 15 to what I think is more correct.  He was also able to 
give us a more direct video feed from Anoka-Hennepin School District.  This has improved the 
picture quality for Channel 18 for all views in the Quad Cities area.  A more direct signal path also 
eliminates some points of failure in getting the signal to QCTV, which should improve channel 
uptime.  Thanks to Patrick Shaw and Keith VanHolbeck from Comcast for the assistance.  I notified, 
Cindy Harris, our contact at AHSD, and informed her of the change. 
 
CenturyLink Equipment 

No issues reported for April.   
   
Future Projects: 
  
City Hall HD Updates 
 This is a continuing project we are working on.  I prepared a Technology Memo for the April 
board meeting outlining future steps. 
 

Action Requested: None. 



QCCCC Agenda Item 

5.1  2016 Audit Report 

 

May 10, 2016 

To:  Commissioners  

From: Karen George, Executive Director  

Subject:  2016 Audit Report 

 
The 2016 Audit Report for QCCCC, prepared by HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd., is 
attached for your review. Representatives from HLB Tautges Redpath, Ltd., will 
present the audit report.  
 
Action Requested: Accept the 2016 Audit report. 

 



 

4810 White Bear Parkway, St. Paul, MN, 55110      651.426.7000      www.redpathcpas.com 
 

April 26, 2017 
 
 
 
Karen George, Administrator 
Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
12254 Ensign Ave. North 
Champlin, MN 55316 
 
Dear Karen: 
 
Enclosed are the following reports for the Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission 
for the year ended December 31, 2016: 
 

 Annual Financial Report (includes Internal Control Letter and Legal Compliance 
Audit Report) (10 copies) 

 Communication with Those Charged with Governance Letter (10 copies) 
 
A copy of the Annual Financial Report has been sent electronically to the Office of the State 
Auditor. 
 
We also emailed you electronic versions of each report. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to be of service.  If the Commission would like to discuss the 
reports, please advise. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Peggy Moeller, CPA 
 
PM/bmg  
 
Enclosures 
 













































































































QCCCC Agenda Item  

5.2 Camera Purchase 

May 10, 2017 

To:  Commissioners 

From:  Karen George, Executive Director 

Subject:   City Hall HD Upgrades – PTZ Camera Proposal
 

General Overview: 
Broadcast Systems Equipment at City Hall  

The first phase or step of the upgrade plan is to purchase and install four HD cameras for 
each of the four city council chambers.  The cameras are remote controlled robotic Pan-Tilt-
Zoom-Focus known as PTZ cameras.  The four main video switchers - Rushworks VDesk 
units were purchased in December of 2014 and are HD ready.   
 

Requested Camera Purchase: 
Request the purchase of 16 Panasonic AW-UE70 PTZ cameras from iSpace Environments, 
Inc. under MN State Contract Pricing for $83,929.761.  QCTV staff, with assistance from a 
city public works or other appropriate city employee, will coordinate and install the new 
cameras.  Further request a contingency for each city for possible problems such as, but not 
limited to, wiring or other infrastructure not being HD capable and needing replacement of 
existing camera wall/ceiling mounts if they are not compatible with the new cameras.   
 

Criteria used to select cameras (see attached spreadsheet): 
1. Must have as much optical zoom capability as current cameras.  12x or more 

needed. 
2. Must have HD-SDI video output on BNC.   
3. Must have compatible camera control with current system.   
4. Must provide a good picture under a range of lower light to bright light conditions. 
5. Should have Reference video sync input.   
6. Should have network video and control interface with the option to use PoE+ to 

power cameras. 
7. Would be nice to have a mechanical ND (neutral density) filter on lens.   

 

Sony BRC-H800 alternative would cost $120,160.00 total and would not provide an ND 
filter. 
 

JVC KY-PZ100B alternative would cost $48,288.00 total and would not provide a Reference 
video input or an ND filter. 
 
 
  
                                                        
1 Per contract, “Prices are FOB Destination, freight prepaid and allowed (the Contract Vendor is not 
allowed to invoice freight charge.” 



 
Action Requested:  

Approve Capital purchase of 16 Panasonic AW-UE70 cameras for $83,929.76 +/-5%.   

Approve expenditure of up to $5,000.00 for unanticipated installation cost at city 
halls. 

Option – Request more information. – Delay purchase. 

 

Consultant Contract: 

The June Commission meeting is cancelled.  Staff is finalizing the Request for 
Proposal (RFP) and replies are expected prior to the July Commission meeting. Staff 
requests that the Executive Committee take action for expediency of the project. 

Action Requested:  

Authorize Executive Committee to take action on consultant contract for auxiliary 
city hall upgrades. 

Option – Consultant contract review/ action at future Commission meeting. 

 



Make Model
Optical 
Zoom

Chip 
Size Ch

ip
 1

 o
r 3

Type
HD-SDI 
out* Re

f. 
In

Power Ethernet Camera Control Resolution
Aprox. 
Price N

D 
Fi

lte
r iSpace 

Environ-
ments

Tierney 
Brothers, 
Inc.

Marco 
Technolog-
ies, LLC.

Panasonic AW-HE130 20 1/3" 3 3-MOS BNC BNC PoE+ Yes 232 & 422 1080p/60 $8,655 Pan: ±175° Tilt: +210°/-30° Yes

Panasonic AW-UE70 20 1/2.3" 1 BNC BNC PoE+ Yes 232 & 422 4k/1080i $5,850 list Pan: ±170° Tilt: +90°/-30° Yes $5,245.61

Sony BRC-H900 14 1/2" 3 3 CMOS BNC BNC 12v no RS-232C/RS-422 (VISCA 1080i $8,500 no

Sony BRC-H800 12 1" 1 Exmor CMOS BNC* BNC PoE+ yes RS-422(VISCA) / VISCA  1080i $8,999 List Pan: ±170° Tilt: +90°/-30° no $7,510.00

Sony BRC-X1000 12 1" 1 Exmor CMOS BNC* BNC PoE+ yes RS-422 4k/1080i $11,499 Pan: ±170° Tilt: +90°/-30° no

Sony EVI-D70 18 1/4" 1? CCD SD no 12v no
RS-232C(VISCA) 
RS-422 (VISCA) no

Sony BRC-300P 12 1/4.7 3 HAD CCD SD BNC 12v no RS-232C/RS-422 (VISCA no

JVC
[KY-PZ100B] Black
[KY-PZ100W] White 30 1/2.8" CMOS BNC* no PoE+ Yes RS232C RS-422 1080p, 1080i, $3,550 List Pan: ±175° Tilt: +90°/-30° no $3,018.00

*(SONY) OSD has Separate HD-SDI Output    *(JVC) Wireless Video Streaming with USB device.

Video signal to noise ratio of 60dB (F8/2000lx; minimum illumination; 2.0 1x)

0.7 lx (50 IRE, F1.8, 48 dB,1/60 without accumulation)

Minimum Illumination (50IRE)  1.7 lux (50IRE, F2.8, 1/30s, Max.Gain)

Minimum Illumination (50IRE)  1.7 lux (50IRE, F2.8, 1/30s, Max.Gain)

Video signal to noise  50dB High sensitive mode OFF :0.2 lx

Video signal to noise ratio  50dB 4 lx (F1.9 +24dB) Minimum illumination

OLD SD cameras (Ramsey)
OLD SD cameras (Andover, Anoka, Champlin)


	Quad Cities Cable Communications Commission Agenda May 18, 2017
	Minutes of the Work Session of April 20, 2017
	Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 20, 2017
	Quad Cities Communications Commission Balance Sheet Summary as of March 31, 2017
	Quad Cities Communications Commission Budget vs Actuals: Budget 2017-FY17 P&L 
	QCTV Bank Reconciliation March 2017
	Quad Cities Communications Commission Bill Payment List March 2017
	QCCCC Agenda Item 4.3 Executive Director's Report
	District Court of Minnesota Tenth Judicial District Letter
	Comcast Important Information - Price Changes
	MACTA Capitol Update Report
	QCCCC Agenda Item 4.3.1 Operations Report
	QCCCC Agenda Item 4.3.2 Technology Report
	QCCCC Agenda Item 2.1 2016 Audit Report
	Redpath and Company Audit Cover Letter
	Redpath and Company Audit Results
	QCCCC Agenda Item 5.2 Camera Purchase
	Criteria Used to Select Camera Spreadsheet

